Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of January 24, 2023
Page 3

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

CITY COUNCIL JOINT WORKSHOP WITH
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION BOARD AND PARK ADVISORY BOARD
Tuesday, January 24, 2023
6:00PM
Cloverleaf Farm Room A
10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Sanders at 6:00PM.
ROLL CALL

PRESENT:
Mayor Tim Sanders, Councilmembers Tom Newland and Jess Robertson.
ABSENT:  Councilmembers Terra Fleming, Chris Massoglia, and Lori Saroya.
Quorum Present.
BOARDMEMBERS PRESENT: 

Park Advisory Board:  Chair Jeff Lester; Chris Ford, Hellen Keraka, Tonya Lizakowski, Kristopher Paulseth 
Natural Resources Conservation Board: Kristen Genet, Carolyn Panning, Gene Rafferty, Mary Jo Truchon 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  City Manager Michelle Wolfe; Senior Parks & Recreation Manager Jerome Krieger; Recreation Manager Nate Monahan; Stormwater Coordinator Megan Hedstrom; and City Clerk Catherine Sorensen.
3.1
Joint Council/Natural Resources Conservation Board/Park Advisory Board.

City Manager Wolfe stated in late 2022 Council briefly considered the possibility of combining the Park Advisory Board and Natural Resources Conservation Board (NRCB) into a joint Parks and Open Space Commission. One reason the proposal was made as there is significant overlap between the two groups and combining the talents, knowledge and skill sets of all will benefit both parks and open space programs. Both groups do very important work and that work needs to continue as it impacts the quality of life here in Blaine.  Staff shared background and rationale for the proposal and stated that should the proposal move forward, next steps would include developing a transition plan, work plan, and code amendments for formal action by Council.  

City Clerk Sorensen shared background on the current board/commission appointment process that was amended in 2020 to be conducted via Council policy to allow for more flexibility in appointments versus through City Code.

Mayor Sanders invited members of the boards to share their feedback on the proposal.  

Boardmember Genet shared how the proposal was not shared at a public meeting and input from the public not sought and felt the idea was being decided without input.  She said the NRCB was established by the “will of the people” and did not want the purpose of the Board to fall away and if changed should be done by the people.  She said the NRCB has a steep learning curve so it is difficult to do term limits for them specifically and not in the best interest of the City to term people out. She asked if the City was still abiding by the 2040 Comprehensive Plan as the goals outlined there would be good to have as prioritized needs, adding she was not sure if supportive of a merger.
Boardmember Panning agreed the learning curve was high and expressed frustration when meetings were cancelled due to lack of items to be voted on as there still could be things to do such as tours and the wetland bank.  She said she felt the City lost interest in the Board and suggested a Sustainability Board instead that could grow and evolve.  She stated the education center changed to a recreation center instead at the Blaine Wetland Sanctuary (BWS) and that an opportunity was missed to come back to the Board first but Council changed direction instead. 
Boardmember Lizakowski said while she was surprised about the concept, she did not have a negative reaction and agreed there is overlap.  She acknowledged the large learning curve and felt her NRCB experience helped her on the Park Board, stating it was advantageous for both sides to know what both groups are doing.  She was concerned about prioritization with NRCB and as we think about the future and should give thought on how to prioritize and dedicate resources, adding it was not so important of which board they sit or but what is prioritized.
Boardmember Rafferty said he was on both boards and did not believe there would be enough time to do all the work on both sides if combined.
Boardmember Truchon shared background and history of the NRCB and said their biggest recommendation was to establish an open space plan with the first focus being the BWS.  She shared how they were told by then-Council there would be no room for open space once the City was fully built out so they formed Open Space 2000 and asked for meetings with Council and requested a survey of residents that showed residents would pay additional taxes to focus on preserving open space, especially for water quality.  She shared how then-Councilmember Clark helped them draft a $3.5 million referendum question which was successful then shared frustrations on how they feel suggestions don’t get to Council, such as sustainability efforts.  She said they had a fiduciary duty to manage money for the wetland bank and they money they had from the referendum then stated they were behind in restoration of wetland banks and their first responsibility is to take care of restoration and should be a priority based on what the people wanted.  She said the nature center was too expensive and was adjusted to a learning center and agreed they should cooperate with the Park Board more through things such as mowing practices in Lochness Park for restoration.  She said the merger was not a bad idea but said we have to be careful about budgets and have staff keep them informed and communicate with Council.  She stated she would like to be reappointed to the NRCS and shared how two subcommittees were formed similar to Springbrook Nature Center and Wargo.
Chair Lester said the scope will not change much so he has no concerns about combining the Boards.  He said the City is changing and there was a time and place in the beginning to be separate but it makes sense from a practicality standpoint for staffing.  He noted the Park Board should consider what is next with the number of parks almost complete and should it change to a Recreation Commission instead or combine with NRCB.
Boardmember Keraka agreed there is heavy emphasis on education for the NRCB but noted Park Board is recreational and there are many overlaps in both with health benefits, outdoor spaces, and water quality and if merged will the education piece be lost and the focus on the importance of natural resources.
Boardmember Paulseth said he was in favor of the merger as his main concern is on fulltime staff and suggested creating a Forestry/Natural Resources Division to accomplish more and allow room to grow.  He said residents would like to see this direction and felt boardmembers could handle this type of combination but would need more staff.
Boardmember Ford said any time government can be more effective it is good for the residents.  He shared his respect for staff and said to combine would bring efficiency but cautioned against expanding the same amount of time in the end, adding he would support anything they can do to make the job easier.
Councilmember Robertson referred to the need to sometimes focus on specific topics like some members of Council are doing with development and suggested something similar could be done with the boards.  She said she would like to find a hybrid way to overlap the two groups and said while Council did discuss the proposed merger briefly at a retreat there was no final decision made.  She said it’s important to make the best use of staff time and understood the differences in passions and said maybe those would be recognized through something different than a board structure.  She thanked all boardmembers for their time, adding it was never intended to remove the historical component of both boards. 
Senior Recreation Manager Krieger commented how the goal was not to remove both boards but instead make the BWS the best it can be as it is both open space and recreation.  He said everyone has the same overall goal then spoke about park dedication and the opportunity to get more funding if combined. 
Mayor Sanders thanked everyone for their honest input and said the topic would be discussed further by the full Council.  He encouraged board members to contact Council if they had anything further to add then spoke about decisions that will impact the City over the next 5-10 years as Blaine was close to full build out.  He said he liked hearing solutions such as matching funds and the synergy to explore/combine then noted it is difficult for Council to provide expertise so fully vetted plans need to be brought forward for review and approval 
Ms. Wolfe noted if staff time was the only factor for this proposal staff would have never brought it forward, adding it was more about being respectful of boardmembers’ time and being impactful and valuable.  She said the Council will be refreshing the strategic plan this spring and will use this information to formulate expectations that will help both boards move forward. 
Other Business
None.
The Workshop was adjourned at 7:05PM.








Tim Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

Catherine Sorensen, CMC, City Clerk
